Form 10-300 (Rev. 6-72)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

STATE: Guam COUNTY: N/A FOR NPS USE ONLY

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY – NOMINATION FORM

	(Type all entries	s - complete appl	icable section	ns)			\dashv
1.	NAME			1			
	COMMON:	Plaza de I	Espana				
	AND/OR HISTORIC:						
2.	LOCATION						
	STREET AND NUMBER:	Saylor Str	reet				
	CITY OR TOWN:			CONGRESSION	AL DISTRICT:		-
		Agana					
	STATE	C	CODE	COUNTY:		CODE	=
0220000		Guam	66			100_	222
3.	CLASSIFICATION	T			I .	LOCESCIDI E	4
	CATEGORY (Check One)	c	OWNERSHIP		STATUS	ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC	c
	District Building	[X]X Public	Public Acquisiti	on:	Occupied	Yes:	\neg
	X Site	Private	☐ In Proc		XX Unoccupied	Restricted	
	☐ Object	☐ Both	☐ Being	Considered	Preservation work	XX Unrestricted	
					in progress	□ No	
	PRESENT USE (Check One or I	More as Appropriate)					
	☐ Agricultural ☐ G	overnment XX	Park		Transportation	Comments	
		ndustrial 🔲	Private Reside Religious	nce	Other (Specify)		_
	☐ Educational ☐ M			-			
2000000	Entertainment XX M	useum	Scientific				_
4.	OWNER OF PROPERTY TOWNER'S NAME:					т	
		Govern	ment of Gu	ıam			
	STREET AND NUMBER:				7		_
							Guam
	CITY OR TOWN:	1,40,00		STATE:			3
-	LOCATION OF LEGAL DESC	Agana					
		PRINTION			Guam	66	
F-COCCOCC	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF	DEEDS, ETC:				1.00	
<u> </u>	courthouse, registry of Departmen	DEEDS, ETC:	agement, G	overnment		1 00	
receive.	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen	t of Land Man		overnment			 N/D
Facilità	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administr	DEEDS, ETC:					N/A
racing .	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen	t of Land Man		overnment			N/A
Economic	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administr	t of Land Man			of Guam	CODE	N/A
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administr CITY OR TOWN:	DEEDS, ETC: t of Land Man ation Buildin					N/A
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administrective or town: Agana	DEEDS, ETC: t of Land Man ation Buildin			of Guam	CODE	N/A
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administr CITY OR TOWN: Agana REPRESENTATION IN EXIS	DEEDS, ETC: t of Land Man ation Buildin	g	STATE	of Guam Guam	code 66	
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administrem CITY OR TOWN: Agana REPRESENTATION IN EXIS	DEEDS, ETC: t of Land Man. ation Building			of Guam Guam	CODE	
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administr CITY OR TOWN: Agana REPRESENTATION IN EXISTITLE OF SURVEY:	DEEDS, ETC: t of Land Man. ation Building	g	STATE	of Guam Guam	code 66	
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administr CITY OR TOWN: Agana REPRESENTATION IN EXISTITLE OF SURVEY:	DEEDS, ETC: t of Land Man. ation Building	g	STATE	Guam Guam APR 5 1974	code 66	
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administrem Agana REPRESENTATION IN EXISTITLE OF SURVEY: DATE OF SURVEY: DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RESTREET AND NUMBER:	DEEDS, ETC: t of Land Man. ation Building	g	STATE	of Guam Guam	CODE 66	
	COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF Departmen STREET AND NUMBER: Administrem City or town: Agana REPRESENTATION IN EXISTITLE OF SURVEY: DATE OF SURVEY: DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RESERVED RESERVED RESERVED RESERVEY RESERVEY RESERVES RESERVED RESERVES RESERVED RESERVES RESERVED RESERVE	DEEDS, ETC: t of Land Man. ation Building	g	STATE	Guam Guam APR 5 1974	code 66	N/A

7.	DESCRIPTION								
					(Chec	k One)			
	CONDITION	Excellent	X Good	☐ Fair	☐ Dete	riorated	Ruins	Unexposed	
	CONDITION		(Check Or	ne)			(Che	ck One)	
		X Alter	red	Unaltered			Moved	XX Original Site	
	DESCRIBE THE PE	RESENT AND ORI	GINAL (if kno	own) PHYSICA	L APPEA	RANCE			

The Plaza de Espana is considered the Governor's Palace, associated buildings and gardens, along with the open plaza immediately in front. The original Plaza de Espana was called the Plaza de

Magalhaes and was the site of the Casa Govierno constructed in 1736 by the Spanish. In addition, the Almacen (arsenal) and garden house

were constructed at this time.

In 1885, the Casa Govierno or Governor's Palace was replaced by a larger palace, but retained the almacen and garden house. The downstairs were used as storerooms while the second floor was the living quarters of the Spanish Governor with the principal rooms being the dining sala in front and Azotea (terrace-porch) in the rear, along with the private quarters of the Governor and his family. of the buildings in the Plaza de Espana were constructed in Spanish style either of wood or of manposteria-a combination of rough coral stones set in place and covered with a smooth lime mortar. Palace was designed with guite thick walls to withstand earthquakes. In addition, local wood, ifil, was used for the ceiling beams. The Governor's Palace was of wood construction. However, the base of the Azotea was of manposteria construction.

During the Spanish rule of Guam, the almacen's first floor was used as an arsenal for the storage of cannon balls, chain shot, and shrapnel with the second floor being used as a barracks and later a hospital. However, the Americans used the first floor for storage of naval stores, the paymaster's office, and a post office with the second floor being used as a hospital, barracks, and the intermediate school.

The earthquake of 1902 caused significant damage to the Palace, so that major renovation was performed by the Americans in 1905. This consisted of laying a cement floor and converting old storerooms into offices on the first floor of the Palace.

In 1930, the almacen was condemned as being unsafe and was dismantled. However, the three connected stone arches in the front called the Arches of the Almacen were preserved and serve as an entranceway to the middle garden which was constructed in 1933 to replace the almacen.

Also, in 1930 the open plaza, 100 yards square in front of the Palace, was landscaped and the small stone Kiosko, or bandstand, was placed in the center. Earlier, the Americans had moved the Kiosko off to one side to allow for a marine baseball field. However, this was discontinued in 1930 with the landscaping of the Plaza de Espana.

Pre-Columbian	16th Century	XX 18th Century	20th Century
15th Century	☐ 17th Century	19th Century	
PECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicat	le and Known)		
REAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Ch	eck One or More as Appropri	ate)	
Abor iginal	Education	X Political	Urban Planning
Prehistoric	Engineering	Religion/Phi	Other (Specify)
Historic	Industry	losophy	,
☐ Agriculture	☐ Invention	Science	
Architecture	Landscape	Sculpture	
☐ [*] Art	Architecture	Social/Human-	
Commerce	Literature	itarian	
Communications	Military	☐ Theater	
Conservation	Music	Transportation	

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Plaza de Espana has been the center of political power in Guam from 1736 until 1944, when the destruction of most of the Governor's Palace occurred during the bombardment which accompanied the invasion of Guam by American Forces.

The original Governor's Palace, which was the principle structure in the complex of buildings, gardens, and park called the Plaza de Espana, was built in 1736. At that time the Plaza de Espana was named Plaze de Magalhaes and the Governor's Palace was called the Casa Govierno. In 1855, the original palace was removed and replaced during the rule of Governor Don Enrique Solano. The remains of this newer palace are still standing in the Plaza de Espana.

The garden house of the 1736 palace was retained in 1855 and even survived the bombardment in 1944. This building has seen many uses and currently houses the Guam Museum. It is considered the oldest Spanish building on Guam in use today.

When the Americans replaced the Spanish rulers on Guam, the Palace continued to be the Governor's residence. Several changes occurred to some of the smaller buildings of the Plaza de Espana during the early years of American rule. However, the historical character of the Plaza and Palace was retained. One of these changes was the destruction of the arsenal which was built in 1736, directly east of the Palace. Fortunately, the entrance arches were retained and still stand as the Arches of the Almacen.

Also, the Kiosko, or bandstand, was moved to make way for a baseball diamond in the Plaza de Espana. In addition, the Plaza de Magalhaes was renamed the Plaza de Espana and the name Casa Govierno was simply dropped in favor of the Governor's Palace.

At the beginning of World War II, the Plaza de Espana was the setting of a drama in the occupancy of Gaum by the Japanese Forces. In the early morning of December 10, 1941, the Japanese Special Naval Landing Force began landing at numerous points on the eastern shore of Guam and began advancing toward Agana.

(See continuation sheet)

																											¢	

Beaty, Janice J., Discovering Guam, Faith Book Store, Agana, Guam, 1972.

Carano, Paul and Sanchez, Pedro C., A Complete History of Guam, Charles E. Tuttle Company, Rutland, Vermon, 1964.

Guam Recorder, April-September, 1972, "Surrender of Guam" by George J. McMillin, University of Guam.

Guain Recorder, April	-september, 19	12,	nia R	uilain	g Demol	ııshed",	, Univ	ersity
10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA							of G	uam.
LATITUDE AND LONGITU		0				SITUDE CO		
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCA	TING THE PROPERTY	_ R	1			N TEN ACI		
CORNER LATITUDE	LONGITUDE	_ ՝`		LATITUDE		LC	DNGITUD	E
Degrees Minutes Seconds	Degrees Minutes Second	ls		Minutes	Seconds	Degrees	Minutes	Seconds
NW 0 , "	0 ,	"	13°	28′	21 *	144°	44'	58 "
NE ' "		. 1	<u> </u> ,					
SW 9	0 ,		1		:			
APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOM		<u>- </u>	4			<u> </u>		
LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES	FOR PROPERTIES OV	ERL		ATE OR C	OUNTY BO	DUNDARIES		
STATE:	cor		COUNTY		Dros		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	CODE
					44.45	Will		
STATE:	COL	E	COUNTY:	7-7	339 a.		1	CODE
						1974		
STATE:	COL	E	COUNTY:	1 2-1	N. HIGA	151	-1	CODE
					T-Gist	Ei .	<u>/</u>	
STATE:	cor	ÞΕ	COUNTY:			10.23		CODE
				14		177	~~~~~	1
11. FORM PREPARED BY								
NAME AND TITLE:								
	l T. Lotz, Plan	ner				DATE		,
ORGANIZATION						1	ary 8,	107/
	and Recreatio	n K	<u>esource</u>	!S'-		Todiluc	11 y 0,	13/4
STREET AND NUMBER:	atmost of Comma	w.c.c	пΩ	Day 60	2			
city or town:	tment of Comme		, P.U. STATE	DUX DB				CODE
Agana	<u>.</u> 1.		6.	Cuar	m			
12. STATE LIAISON OFFICER CE			N	<u>Gua</u> ATIONAL	AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA	ER VERIF	ICATIO	1 66 N
	g same and the same	.						
As the designated State Liaiso		.	I hereby			roperty is i	included	in the
tional Historic Preservation A		- 11	-	_	_			
89-665), I hereby nominate this		- 11		-	•			
in the National Register and converge evaluated according to the crit		- 11		1	1211	4 . 1		
forth by the National Park Serv	The second secon	- 11		U	7WL	orle	est 52	
level of significance of this no		-	Director,	Office of	Archeology	and Histori	ic Preser	vation
National X State	Local							
State	1			5	1901	,		
1			Date	-0//	114			
Name			ATTEST	۲•				
			**********			,		
// // // // // // // // // // // // //	<u> </u>			/	/	' /.	1	1
Title Director of	<u>ommerce</u>	- 1			mi	Kun	1	
				Keepe	r of The I	Vational Be	egis fr	
1201201 24 1	07/		Fints		5.1	.74	•	
Date January 24, 1	7/4		Date		<u> </u>	_/_		
							GI	0 931-894

Form 10-300a (July 1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

STATE	
Guam	
COUNTY	
N/A	
FOR NPS USE ONL	Υ
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE

(Continuation Sheet)

(Number all entries)

7. Description (Continuation)

The July, 1944 naval bombardment of Agana destroyed several structures in the Plaza de Espana, namely, the Kiosko, Chocolate House, and the Palace. However, several walls of the complex, the Arches of the Almacen, the foundation of the Azotea, and the Garden House survived.

After the war, the Kiosko in the center of the Plaza was rebuilt as was the Chocolate House. In the reconstruction of the Chocolate House, two Spanish coat-of-arms found in the ruins of the Palace were placed in the walls of the rebuilt Chocolate House. The Azotea was also roofed over. This was destroyed by Typhoon Karen in 1962 and was replaced in 1970. This newly constructed roof over the Azotea is not a true replica of the roof which covered the structure immediately prior to World War II.

The original garden house became the Guam Museum in 1954. At the same time the interior was extensively modified with a new ceiling, new floor and painting of the interior. In 1965, a new tile roof was installed.

Form 10-300a (July 1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet)

STATE	
Guam	
COUNTY	
N/A	
FOR NPS USE ONL	Y
ENTRY NUMBER	DATE

(Number all entries)

8. Significant (Continuation)

At 4:45 a.m., the Japanese Forces were observed in the San Antonio District, directly to the east of the Plaza de Espana. Then the Guamanians of the Insular Forces Guard along with sailors and marines took up defensive positions in the Plaza de Espana armed with rifles and .30 caliber machine guns. When the Japanese Forces approached the Plaza de Espana, they were forced to halt for a short time due to the defense put up by the Insular Force Guard, marines, and sailors. However, in a short time the resistance appeared hopeless and a cease-fire was called at 5:45 a.m. Subsequently, liaison was established between the two forces, and shortly thereafter, the American Governor, Captain George J. McMillin, USN, surrendered the island to the Japanese in the Plaza de Espana.

During the occupation of Guam by the Japanese, the Palace in the Plaza de Espana became the headquarters of the Japanese occupation forces until the American invasion and bombardment in July, 1944.

After the war the Plaza de Espana became a park upon the repair of the garden house, foundation of the Azotea, Arches of the Almacen, and portions of the walls of the complex. In addition, the Kiosko, Chocolate House, and gardens were reconstructed.

